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MEETING OF FEBRUARY 5, 2019 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
   
 
THRU: Don Marr, Chief of Staff 
 Garner Stoll, Development Services Director 
 Chris Brown, City Engineer 
 
FROM: Alan Pugh, Staff Engineer 
 
DATE: January 17, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of the 2019 USGS joint funding agreement in the amount of 
$61,721.00 (City's share) for stream gauge operation and maintenance as well as water 
quality sampling and monitoring for various locations within the City of Fayetteville 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff Recommends approval of the 2019 USGS joint funding agreement in the amount of 
$61,721.00 (City's share) for stream gauge operation and maintenance as well as water quality 
sampling and monitoring for various locations within the City of Fayetteville.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2015 the City of Fayetteville modified its contract with USGS to begin monitoring both flow 
and major pollutants at two location on major outfalls from the City, Town Branch and Mud 
Creek .  This data is being gathered continuously and through sampling at various times in order 
to more closely model the pollutant concentrations in these streams.  This combined with the 
flow data will give accurate information on the total amount of the various constituents being 
measured leaving the City at these points. The information produced by the gauges can be 
viewed on the USGS website by following:  
 
Town Branch: http://waterdata.usgs.gov/usa/nwis/uv?07048495 
Mud Creek: http://waterdata.usgs.gov/ar/nwis/uv?site_no=071948095 
 
In 2015 the City of Fayetteville contributed $61,721 to the stream gauge program and the USGS 
contributing $10,000 in funds as well as providing and installing the equipment at no charge to 
the City.  The 2016 program was approved at the same funding levels and scope of work as 
2015 and modified slightly in 2017 in order to stay within budget. The program remained 
unchanged from 2017 in the 2018 agreement.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
The proposed program would remain unchanged from 2018.  The proposed program would 
again include a continuous monitor stream gauge with sampling and determination of various 
pollutant concentrations at two locations within the City of Fayetteville.  These locations would 
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track continuous information regarding flow, turbidity, temperature and conductance.  The 
sampling at these locations would provide a mechanism in which these constituents could be 
related to other pollutants such as total suspended solids (TSS) essentially providing relatively 
accurate continuous pollutant loading information.  
 
The first station is located on Town Branch near Armstrong Ave and monitors a largely 
developed area that discharges into the West Fork of the White River which currently has Total 
Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) defined by ADEQ for turbidity.  Monitoring just upstream of the 
West Fork allows the City to determine Fayetteville’s contribution to this TMDL.  Initial results 
indicate that the stream may meet the TMDL for base flow conditions, however, it much higher 
during storm events.  
 
The second station is located on Mud Creek near Greg Avenue which is a tributary to the Illinois 
River. As you may be aware, the Illinois River phosphorus concentration is currently under 
dispute between the States of Arkansas and Oklahoma.  Pending the outcome of this litigation, 
additional enforcement measures may be placed on Arkansas municipalities regulating both 
point and non-point source pollution.  It would be beneficial to have a base line from which to 
judge the potential TMDL as well as monitor the progress of measures developed to reduce 
pollutants.  Initial results indicate that the stream may meet the considered concentration of 
0.037mg/l of phosphorus during the discharge of base flow.  
 
In addition to the items above, the recommendation also includes maintaining a crest stage 
gauge on Niokaska Creek at Township.  This gauge has been useful in the past in determining 
the intensity of storm events and the extent of any flooding that they caused.  
 
The total cost for the program described above would be $66,721 with the USGS contributing 
$5,000 in Cooperative Funding for a total cost to the City of Fayetteville of $61,721.  In addition 
to the Cooperative Funds, the USGS provided and installed the equipment in 2015 at no cost to 
the City. 
 
BUDGET/STAFF IMPACT: 
As stated the total cost of the program would be $66,721 with the USGS contributing $5,000 in 
funding. The remaining $61,721 would be split between projects managed by the Engineering 
Division and the Water and Sewer Department.  As the information collected would benefit both 
departments equally, it is proposed to split the required funds 50/50 between the two projects, 
or a total of $30,860.50 each. 
 
Attachments: 
Proposed Agreement with USGS 
 
 
 
 








